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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Presbytere, together with its matching structure, the Cabildo, is the
finest extant example of Spanish Colonial formal public building architecture
in the United States. As completed around 1813, it was a two-story brick
building with flat balustraded roof, topped by urns. The lower story has an
arcaded open gallery with a second story gallery above. The lower arcade is
formed by slightly elliptical arches which spring from square piers with two
Doric pilasters to halt the rhythm at the corners. The upper story is of
similar design, but Tonic pilasters are applied to the piers between the
glazed arches. A central pediment crowned the center three bays where
engaged columns on both levels have been applied to the piers.

When the mansard roof was added to the Cabildo in 1847, the Presbytere was
also altered to retain the similarity of appearance. A rear wing was added
in 1840. Otherwise, the exterior has been little altered. The interior
was restored and renovated in 1962-63, to make modern offices on the third
floor. A natural science museum is located in the lower section.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Presbytere, originally known as the Casa Curial, was designed by
Gilberto Guillemard in 1791 as the rectory of the St. Louis Cathedral.
Construction halted in 1798 and the building remained unfinished, only
one-story high, until it was completed by the wardens of St. Louis
Cathedral in 1813. Guillemard also designed the Cabildo on the other
side of the Cathedral, using the same design. This design continued to be
followed in the Presbytere upon its completion. Together with the Cabildo,
the Presbytere presents an impressive formal architectural ensemble creating
one of the most important architectural plazas in the United States.

HISTORY

In the early days, the site of the Presbytere was occupied by a Capuchin
monastery. The present building was designed by Guilberto Guillemard, a
French architect in the military service of Spain, in 1791 as the rectory
of the St. Louis Cathedral. The building was originally called the Casa
Curial, which has a similar meaning in Spanish as Presbytere does in french.

The foundations were set before the Cabildo, sometime before the. fire of
1794. Construction was halted in 1798 by Don Almonester y Roxas, who was
then actively engaged in the construction of the Cabildo. The building
remained one story high until it was completed by the wardens of St. Louis
Cathedral in 1813. The building was never used for its intended purpose.
The United States government rented the space for its lower courts, the
court of appeals and the supreme court from 1813 until 1833. In March
1831, the City of New Orleans paid the wardens $10,500 for land in the
rear of the Presbytere. The building itself was bought for $55,000 in
1853. In 1911, the ownership was transferred to the State of Louisiana
for use as a museum, as was the Cabildo. It serves this purpose today
with the offices for all museum operations located in the upper story.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The Presbytere is bounded by St. Ann Street for about 108 feet on the east,
by Chartres Street for about 117 feet on the south, by Pere Antione Alley
for about 108 feet on the west, and by adjacent buildings for about 118 feet
on the north as shown on the Plat Map labeled Sketch Map A.
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